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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To 
The Members of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED 

 
Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the statement of Profit and loss 
(Including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022,and its Loss, total comprehensive 

income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 
Basis of Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements 

and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the 

date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 

position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in 

equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability  

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by the management. 

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 

the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 

2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central  

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 

‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 

applicable. 

 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account; 

 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015; 

 
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure ‘B’. 

 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as on March 31, 2022. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses; 

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company; 
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(h) The managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2022 has been paid/ provided for by 

the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to 

the Act. 

(i) As per the management representation we report, 

 

(i) no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other 
person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding that 
the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries. 
 

(ii) no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries. 

 
(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our notice that 

has caused us to believe that the representations given under sub-clause (i) and (ii) by the 
management contain any material misstatement. 

 
 

(j) No dividend has been paid by the company 

 

 

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 003273N 

 

G. K. Aggarwal 
Partner 
M. No. 086622 
Date: 29th April,2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: 22086622AIGENU4775 
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ANNEXURE ’A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED 
on the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022) 

 
1. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets. 

b) A major portion of the PPE has been physically verified by the Management in accordance 
with a phased programmed of verification once in four years adopted by the company. In our 
opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company 
and the nature of its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies have been 
noticed on such verification. 

 
c) The Company does not have any immovable property wherein reporting requirement with 
respect to title deed of immovable properties is applicable. 

 
d) The Company has not revalued its PPE and Intangible assets during the year. Hence, the 
reporting requirement of para 3(i)(d) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
e) As explained to us and as per the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings 

have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. Hence, Para 3(i)(e) of the order is not 
applicable to the company. 

 
2. (a) As explained to us, the management during the year has physically verified inventories. In 

our opinion, the coverage and procedure of verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% 
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. 

 
(b) No working capital limit has been sanctioned and availed by the Company. Hence, the 
reporting requirement of para 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
3. In our opinion and According to the information and the explanations given to us, the company 

during the year has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted 

any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 

Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the provisions of Para 3(iii)(a-f) of the order 

are not applicable to the company. 

 
4. The Company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security covered under 

Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of 

the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.. 

 
5. According to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or 

amount which are deemed to be deposits, the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of the companies Act and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time. No order has been 
passed with respect to Section 73 to 76, by the Company Law Board or National Company 

Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other tribunal. 
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6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the company 

pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records 
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the company’s products and 

are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained. 
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of records with a view to determine 

whether they are accurate or complete. 

 
7. (a) Undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employee’ state 

insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 

and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate 

authorities and there are no undisputed dues outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of 

more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material statutory 

dues referred in aforesaid clause 7(a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate 

authorities on account of any dispute. 

 
8. In our opinion and as per the information and explanations furnished to us, there are no 

unrecorded transactions or transactions disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act. Hence, the para 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
9.  (a) In our opinion, on the basis of books and records examined by us and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loan 

or other borrowing and payment of interest to any lender. Hence, the para 3(ix) of the order is 

not applicable to the Company. 

(b) In our opinion, and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the Company 
is not willful defaulter by any bank or other financial institution or any other lender. 

 
(c) In our opinion and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the term loan 

availed were utilized for the purpose for which the loan were taken. 

 
(d) On the basis of books and records examined by us, the company has not raised any short 
term fund. Hence, Para 3(ix)(d) of the order not applicable to company. 

 
(e) On the basis of books and records examined by us, the Company has not taken any funds from 

from any entity or person to meet the obligation of its subsidiary. 

 
(f) On the basis of books and records examined by us and as explained to us, the Company has 

not raised loan during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary. 

 
 

10. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer or debt instruments. Hence, the para 3(x) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(b)   According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has made private placement of shares, through 

preferential issue during the year, in compliance of Section 42 and 62 of the companies Act, 

2013 and the amount raised have been used for the purposes for which it has been raised. 

 
11. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the 

Management and based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and in 

accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have been informed that no 

case of frauds by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported by the Company. 

 
(b) As informed to us and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, there was no 

report in prescribed form ADT-4 under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 

required to be filed. Hence, the reporting para 3(xi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 
(c) No whistle blower complaints were received by the Company. Hence, the reporting para 

3(xi)of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
12. The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order 

are not applicable to the Company. 

 
13.  According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related 

parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act, and where applicable the details have 

been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 
14.  According to the information and explanations given to us. In our opinion and as per the 

information and explanation furnished to us, the Company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The report of the internal auditor 

furnished for the period as submitted to us, was considered in framing the opinion. 

 
15. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons 

connected with him as covered under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 

provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
16. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to 

be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
(b) In our opinion and as explained to us by the management, the Company has not conducted 
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid certificate of 
registration from Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 
(c) In our opinion and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the Company is 
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulation made by the Reserve Bank 
Of India. Hence, the reporting para 3(xvi)(c) and (d)of the order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
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17. The Company has not incurred cash loss during the year and in the immediately preceding 

previous year. 

 
18. There was no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Hence, the reporting para 

3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
19. In our opinion and based on the books and relevant documents and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of 

the Board of Directors and management plan no material uncertainty exists as on the date of 

the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

 
20 The Company is not required to incur any amount under Corporatize Social Responsibility (CSR). 

Hence, the reporting clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
21. There are no qualifications or adverse remark by the respective Auditor in the separate 

Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) of the companies included in the consolidated 

financial statements. Hence, the reporting para 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 
 
 

 
For N.C. Aggarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 003273N 

 
G. K. Aggarwal 
Partner 
M. No. 086622 
Date: 29th April,2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: 22086622AIGENU4775 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED 
on the accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JINDAL UNITED STEEL 
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company and the 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial  
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks  
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

 

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 003273N 

 

G. K. Aggarwal 
Partner 
M. No. 086622 
Date: 29th April,2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: 22086622AIGENU4775 



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
CIN-U28113HR2014PLC053875
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022

Particulars A!i'at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021Note No.

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital Work-In-Progress
(c) Goodwill
(d) Other Intangib!e Assets
(e) FinancialAssets

(I) Investments
(II) Other FinancialAssets

(f) Other Non-Current Assets

(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) FinancialAssets

(I) Investments
(II) Trade Receivables
(ill) Cash and Cash I;:qulvalents
(iv) Other Bank Balances
(v) Other FinancialAssets

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)
(d) Deffered Tax Asset (Net)
(e) Other Current Assets
Total Assets

EQUITYAND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(c) Other Equity

Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) FlnandalUablllties

(I) Borrowings
(b) Provisions
(c) Deffered Tax Uabillties (Net)

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Flnanclill liabilities

(I) Borrowings
(Iff) Trade Payables
- Due to MicrOand small enterprises
- Due to other than Micro and small enterprises

(Iv) Other Financial liabilities
(b) Other Current liabilities
(c) Provisions
Total Equltv and LIabilities

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to Financial Statements

2
41
3
4

2,61,173.43 2,73,834.43
4,853.80 1,061.96
242.78 242.78
27.09 20.50

14.02 4.67
5.16 2,029.10

5,041.42 15,728.30

4,931.28 1,977.88

7,563.33 7,525.11
4,498.60 1,583.03
346.74 563.89
879.68 844.45
680.43 844.07

3,566.07 1,180.92
3,008.28

710.95 1,087.51
2,94,534·78 3,11,536.88

46,160.83 42,844.59
15,410.82 (120.60)

5
6
7

8

9
10
11
1;1.
13
14
14A
15

16
16A

17 2,17,943.15
18 426.34
14A 3,019.73

19 1,750.66

20 614.17
20 5,984.84
21 2,684.10
:l2 520.94
23 19.20

2,94,$34.78

2,56,328.68
366.06

745.07

324.68
7,544.51
2,816.28
676.48
11.13

3,11,536.88

1-51

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jindal U{lited Steel Limited

As per our report of even date attached

For N.C.Aggarwal lit. Co.
Chartered Accountants'~ ..mJ__
G.K. Aggarwal
PARTNER
M.No.086622_. . ..---

Place : New Deihl
Dated :29th April 2022

c1:ft~.:Ir
QIN-p~633751

Om Praksh Verma
Director
QI('I-07137865

~·"'\'vY\,Cy ~l~;

-N5'i'I~ic!~F~~~~i~;-·~
Chief FinancialOfficer

Q.~\;~,..t
~~I<I1!!n ..... ""

Com Secretary
AS: 53378
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JINDAL UNITED STEELLIMITED
CIN-U28113HR2014PlC05387S
Statement Of Profit And loss For The Year Ended March 31,2022

Particulars Note No. Year EndedMarch Year EndedMarch
31,2022 31.2021

24 1,48,334.07 90,407.78

25 1,487.96 723.33
1149,822.03 91!131.11

I. Revenuefrom Operations

II.Other Income
Total Income (I +11)

III. Expenses:
RawMaterialConsumed
ChangesIn inventoriesof finishedgoods,workIn
progressandTradinggoods
EmployeeBenefitElfpenseS
FinanceCosts
DepreciationandAmortisation
OtherExpenses
Total Expenses

26
27

26,213.89 7,929.32
(2,344.49) 1,206.14

2,999.1& 2,546Al
23,649.37 30,472.72
15,927.99 15,267.32
62,483.82 40,111.02

1,28,929.76 97,532.94
......- .__ ._"-' .". _ ..
20,892.27 (6,401.83)

15.05 0.36

20,877,22 (6,402.19)

6,028.39 (2,266.87)

6,028.39 (2,266.87)

14,848.83 (4,135.32)

(10.92) 20.44
2.75 (7.14)
9.35 3.01
(2.35) (1.05)

(1.17) 15.26

14,847.66 (4,120.06)

2.98 (0.87)
2.98 (0.87)

28
29
30
31

IV. Proflt/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary Items and tax (I+II-I1I)

V. Exceptional Items (Galn)/Loss 32

VI. Proflt/(Loss) before Ta,. (IV - V)

VII. Tax expense:
(1) DeferredTax 44

VIII. Profit/{LOSs) for the year after taxation (VI-VII)

IX. Other comprahanllvelncome:
Items that will not bereclassified to profit or loss
Re·measurementgains(losses)ondefinedbenefitplans
Incometax effect
GainI (loss) on Fairvaluationof long TermInvestment
Incometax effectonabove

Total Other comprehensive Income (IX)

X.Total ComprehensiveIncome for the year (VIlI+IX)

XI. Earning per equity share of face value oft 10/- each,
(1) Basic . 40
(2) Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to FinancialStatements 1-51

Asper our reportof eVendateattached Forandonbehalfof the Board of Directorsof
llndal United Steel Limited

ForN.C. Aggarwal lit Co.
CharteredAccountants
Firm RegistrationNo.003273N

~

om PrakshVerma
Director
D1N-07137865

G.K.Agll_al
PARTNER
M.No.086622.
Place : NewDeihl
Dated:29th April 2022

~1-;~~
ACS: 53378

.. -- .._ ... -.
ChiefFinancialOfflcer



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
CIN-U28113HR2014PLC053875
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2022

A. Equity Share Capital
(l! in Lakhs)

Balance 8S at Marcil 31,2020 Changes In equity share capital Balance as at March Changes In equity Balance as at Man:h
during 2020-21 31,2021 share capital during 31,2022

2021-22

38114.86 4729.73 42:844.59 3 31~.24 46160,83

B.OtherEaultv
0.01'VoNon Reservea and SUr!>lus Items of Otber Comprehensive Income Tatal
Cumulallve

Particulars Compulsarlly RetainedEarnings Share premium Re-rneasurementof GainI (Loss)on FairCGnverllbl8
Preference Sh".-- the net defined valuallon"f

(NCCCP$) benefit plans Investment

Balance "" at March 31, 2020 7,595.14 (2,346.10) . (18.59) (0.76) 5,229.20
Proflt/(Loss)for the year (4,135.32) (4,135.32)
Re-measurementof the net defined benefit pta"" (net of taxes) 13.30 13.30
GainI (Loss) on Fair valuation or Investment (net of taxes) 1.96 1.96
SharesConvertedduring the year 16 (e) (I» (1,229.74) (1.229.74)
Balance lISat Man:h 31, 2011 6,365.40 (6,481.92) - (5.29) 1.20 (120.60)
Profit/(Loss)for the year 14,848.83 14,848.83
Premium on share allotment 1,546.01 1.546.01
Re-measurementof the net defined benefit plans (net of taxes) (8.17) (8.17)
GainI (Loss)on Fair valuation of Investment (net of taxes) 7.00 7.00
SharesConvertedduring the year 16 (e)' (I» (862.25) 1(862.25)
Balance as atMa_ 31, 1012 5,503.15 8,366.91 1,546.01 (13,46) 8.20 15,410.82

As per our report of even date attached Forand on behalf of the Boand of Directors of
Jindal United Steel Umlted

Om Praksh Verma
Director
OINo0713786S

For N.C. Aggarwal. Co.
Chartered Accountants
firm Regl~tlon No.003273N

G.K. Agprwlll
PARTNER
M.No. 086622

Place : New Deihl
Dated :29th April 2022



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
CIN-U28113HR2014PLC053875
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022

(' In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS For the year Ended For the year Ended

March 31 2022 March 31 2021
A. CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW! FROMTHE OPERATING ACTIVITIES

20,892.27 (6,4~1.83) (6,401.83)NET PROFIT BEfORE TAX 20,892.27
Adjustments for
Add/{less)

Depreciation 15,927.99 15,267.32
Interest Expense 23,166.57 30,176.02
Profit on sale of fixed assets (32.89) (65.66)
loss on sale of asset 52.60 -
Acturall Galn/(Loss) (1M2) 20.44
Interest Income (282.91) 38820.44 (635.12) 44763.00

OPERATING PROFIT BEFOREWORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Adjustments for:-

Inventories (2,953.40) 1,587.43
Trade Receivables (2,915.57) (1,28l.86)
Loansan~ adv~nces and other assets 12,502.76 2,117,39
Trade and Other Payables (1458.4ii) 5175.31 683.50 3106.46

CASHGENERATEDFROMOPERATIONSBEFOREEXCEPTIONALITEMS 64,888.02 41,467.63
Exceptional Items (15.05) (15.05) (0.36) (0.36)
Tax Paid (2385.15) 1767.50

NETCASHINFLOW/(OUTFLOW)FROMOPERATINGACTIVITIES 62,487.82 43,234.77
B. CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

(Increasel/Decrease In Current Investment (38.22) (7,525.11)
Interest Income 995.94 456.26
Sale of fixed assets 42.59 106.06
Capital expenditure (7,127.72) (5,739.59)

NETCASHINFLOW/(OUTFLOW)FROMINVESTINGACTIVITIES (6,127.40) (1l,702.38)
C. CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROMFINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(Decrease) In Non-Current Borrowings (41,327.63) (2,692.86)
Interest paid (20,255.54) (31,165.99)
Increase/(Decrease) In Current Borrowings 1,005.59 (392.54)
Issue of Equity ShareGapltal 4,000.00 3,499.99

NETCASHINFLOW/(OUTFLOW)FROMFINANCINGACTIVITIES (56577.58) (30751.40)
NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (217.16) (219.01)

Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of the year 563.89 782.90
Cash and ca.h equivalents at end of the year 346.73 563.89

NOTE:
1. Increase/(decrease) In Non-current and current borrowings are shown net of repayments.
2. Figures in bracket int;llcatescash outflow.
3. The above cash now statement has been prepared under the Indirect method setout In IND AS-7 'Statement of CashFlows'.
As per our report of even date attached

For N.C. Aggarwal .. Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

Om Praksh Verma
Director
DIN-07137865

Director
DIN-036337S1

.~
\._ -_ \",2:5l \~f""~~C"'-

Narliider Dhinkar
Chief Fimmdal Officer

G.K. Aggarwal
PARTNER
M.No. 086622
Place : New Deihl
Dated :29th April 2022

ACS: 53378



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements

1.Significant accounting policies

A. Corporate and General Information

Jindal United Steel Limited ("JUSL)" or ("the Company") is domiciled and incorporated in India. The Company is
a leading manufacturer of hot rolled products of stainless steel and carbon steel. The Registered Office of the
Company is located at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar. The Company has acquired the HSM Plant from Jindal Stainless
Limited pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between the Company and Jindal Stainless limited
as a part of integrated steel plant to be set up at Jajpur, Orissa.

B. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared complying in all material respects with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IndAS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rule 2015. The financial statements comply with INDASnotified by Ministry of Company
Affairs ("MCA"). The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation for all
periods presented.

The significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements are set out in Note nO.1Cof the
Notes to Financial Statements.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification dated March 24, 2021, amended Division II of
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. These amendments are applicable for the reporting period beginning
on or after April 1, 2021. The amendment encompasses significant additional disclosure requirements and
includes certain changes to the existing disclosures. The Company has applied and incorporated the
requirements of amended Division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 while preparing these
standalone financial statements based on available information including exposure draft of revised guidance
note on Division 11-Ind AS schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 issued by the corporate laws & corporate
governance committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants India (ICAI).

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual
results could vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future years (refer Note no. lC{xviii) on Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements).

C. Significant Accounting Policies

i) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and under the historical cost
convention except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below.



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

ii) Property, Plant and Equipment

a) For transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of previous GAAP
for all its tangible assets as of l't April, 2015 (transition date) and use that carrying value as its deemed cost
on transition date.
However, under the previous GAAP, the Company has fair valued all its Property, Plant and Equipment on
transfer of business to the Company under Composite Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note No 36).

b) Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

c) Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided as per guidance set out in Schedule II of the Act on straight
line method, on remaining Useful life on transfer of Property, Plant and Equipment under Composite Scheme
of Arrangement. However, in respect of certain Plant and Machinery, electrical installation and Factory
Building, depreciation is provided as per their useful lives assessed on the basis of technical evaluation by
the external valuer, as stated below:

Category of Assets Years
-Building 25-45
-Plant and Machinery Up to 35 Years

iii). Intangible Assets

The Identifiable intangible assets are recognised:

i) When the Company controls the asset,
ii) It is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and
iii) The cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Computer software's are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are
amortised over the period of license, generally not exceeding five years on straight line basis. The assets' useful
lives are reviewed at each financial year end.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is tested for impairment at the end of each Financial Year.



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

iv). Impairment of non-current assets

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet there are indications of impairment and
the carrying amount of the asset, or where applicable the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs
exceeds its recoverable amount [i.e. the higher of the net asset selling price and value in use).The carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the
Statement of Profit and loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

v). Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents includes Cashon hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft as they are considered an integral part of the
Company's cash management.

vi). Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap, which is valued at net realizable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present
location and condition. Cost is computed on the weighted average basis.

vii). Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and loss of the year in
which the related services are rendered.

ii) leave encashment being a short term benefit is accounted for using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the
basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

iii) Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and is
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees have rendered services.

iv) The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in
statement of profit and loss.
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v) TheCompany'sliability towards employeebenefits suchasgratuity, leaveencashment,and other terminal
benefits are provided for on the basisof actuarial valuation. Companydoesnot operate any Definedplan for
Gratuity; hence,the liability is recognisedin the books.The liability towards terminal benefit is un-funded.

viii). Foreigncurrency reinstatement and translation

(i) Functionaland presentation currency

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees,which is the Company's functional and
presentationcurrency.

(ii) Transactionsand balances

Transactionsin foreign currenciesare initially recorded by the Companyat rates prevailingat the date of the
transaction. Subsequentlymonetary items are translated at closingexchangerates of balancesheet date and
the resulting exchangedifference recognisedin profit or loss.Differencesarisingon settlement of monetary
itemsare also recognisedin profit or loss.

Non-monetaryitems that are measuredin terms of historical cost in a foreign currencyare translated usingthe
exchangerates at the datesof the transaction.Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the exchangerates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Exchangecomponent of the gain or loss arising on fair valuation of non-monetary items is
recognisedin linewith the gainor lossof the item that gaverise to suchexchangedifference.

ix). Financialinstruments - initial recognition, subsequentmeasurement and impairment

A financial instrument is any contract that givesrise to a financial assetof one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transactioncost that are directly attributable to the acquisitionor issueof financial assetsor financial liabilities
(Other than financial assetsand financial liabilities at fair value through profit and lossaccount) are addedto
or deductedfrom fair value measuredon initial recognitionof financial assetor financial liability.

FinancialAssetsand liabilities are measuredat amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive
Incomeor fair valuethrough Profit or Loss,dependingon its businessmodel for managingthosefinancial assets
and liabilities and the assetsand liabilities contractual cashflow characteristics.

FinancialAssetsat amortised cost

Financialassetsaresubsequentlymeasuredat amortisedcost if these financialassetsare heldwithin a business
whose objective is to hold these assetsto collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial assetsgive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
amount outstanding.

FinancialAssetsat fair value through other comprehensive income

Financialassetsare measuredat fair value through other comprehensiveincome if these financial assetsare
heldwithin a businesswhoseobjective is achievedby both collecting contractual cashflows on specifieddates
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction cost directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets and liability at fair value thorough profit or loss are immediately recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including interest bearing loans and borrowings and trade payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR) except those designated in an
effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR.The EIRamortisation is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and
loss.

x). Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of
borrowing cost incurred during that period.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

xi). Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax (including MAT). Tax is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items initially recognised in equity or other comprehensive
income is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income, such change could be for change in tax rate.

Current tax provision is computed for Income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under
the provisions of the applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and
presented as net.
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using
the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off
set, and presented as net.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed
to be carried forward. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period.

xii). Revenue recognition and Other income

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and represents the net invoice
value of goods supplied to third parties after deducting discounts, volume rebates and outgoing sales tax/GST
and are recognized either on delivery or on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Sale of Services-Job work

Revenue from job work charges is accounted for on the basis of work performed and rendering of service as per
the terms of the specific contract.

Other Operating Income

Incentives on export as per the policy of government are recognized in books after due consideration of
certainty of utilization.

Other Income

Interest
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

xiii). Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share
to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

xiv). Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securities interest rate.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Conti ngencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent
assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

xv). Current /non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabilities and
current liabilities in accordance with Schedule III, Division II of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

xvi). lease

The Company assesseswhether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.
To assesswhether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

(i) The contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short term and leasesof low
value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.
And in case entity is lessor, it identifies whether the lease is defined as finance or operating lease as per the
criteria given in Ind AS 116.
In case of Operating lease, an entity recognises lease payment as income on straight line basis

In case of Finance lease, an entity initial measurement

(i) Derecognises the carrying amount of underlying assets

(Ii) Recognise the net investment in lease

(iii) Recognise profit and loss on selling profit or selling loss

@.
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And on subsequent measurement, entity recognises finance income over the lease period and reduces the net
investment in the lease for lease payment received and recognise income from any variable lease payments and
recognises any impairment of the net investment in the lease

xvii). Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards applied
The group has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2021:

• Extension of COVID-19 related concessions - amendments to Ind AS 116
• Interest rate benchmark reform - amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective
1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") amended the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021
to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These
amendments are effective from 1 April 2021.
Consequent to above, the group has changed the classification/presentation of
(i) current maturities of long-term borrowings
(ii) security deposits, in the current year
The current maturities of long-term borrowings (including interest accrued) has now been included in the
"Current borrowings" line item. Previously, current maturities of long-term borrowings and interest accrued
were included in 'other financial liabilities' line item.
Further, security deposits (which meet the definition of a financial asset as per Ind AS 32) have been included in
'other financial assets' line item. Previously, these deposits were included in 'loans' line item.

xviii). Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
estimates,assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statement:

(i) Property, plant and equipment
External adviser or internal technical team assessthe remaining useful lives and residual value of property, plant
and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual value are reasonable, the
estimates and assumptions made to determine depreciation are critical to the Company's financial position and
performance.
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(ii) Incometaxes
Managementjudgment is required for the calculationof provisionfor incometaxesanddeferred tax assetsand
liabilities. The Companyreviews at eachbalancesheet date the carryingamount of deferred tax assets.The
factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the
amounts reported in the financialstatements.

(iii) Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources,if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations againstthe Companyas it is not possibleto predict the outcome of pending
matterswith accuracy.

(iv) Fairvalue of financial assetsand liabilities
Whenthe fair valueof financialassetsandfinancial liabilities recordedin the balancesheetcannotbemeasured
basedon quoted pricesin activemarkets,their fair value is measuredusingvaluation techniquesincludingthe
DiscountedCashFlow(DCF)model.Theinput to thesemodelsistaken from observablemarketswhere possible,
but where this is not feasible,a degreeof judgement is required in establishingfair value.Judgementsinclude
considerationof input suchasliquidity risk,credit riskandvolatility. Changesin assumptionsabout thesefactors
could affect the reported fair valueof financial instruments.

(v) Definedbenefit plan
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salaryincreases,mortality ratesandattrition rate. Dueto the complexitiesinvolved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions.All assumptionsare reviewedat eachreporting date.

(Thisspacehasbeen intentionally left blank)
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Notes to Financial Statements
2. Property, Plant and Equiptment

(~ in Lakhs)

Particulars Building Plant and Machinery
Furniture and Office equipment Total

Fixtures

Gross Block
As at March 31,2020 39,286.00 2,45,758.70 114.79 30.25 2,85,189.74

Additions 235.90 6,611.95 14.05 6,861.90

Disposal - 807.98 807.98

As at March 31,2021 39,521.90 2,51,562.67 128.84 30.25 2,91,243.66

Additions 96.47 3,184.02 11.51 36.13 3,328.13

Disposal - 266.96 266.96

As at March 31,2022 39,618.37 2,54,479.73 140.35 66.38 2,94,304.83

Accumulated Depreciation

As at March 31,2020 344.91 2,539.46 26.45 8.69 2,919.51

Chargefor the Year 1,391.76 13,847.04 12.96 5.54 15,257.30

Disposal 767.58 767.58

As at March 31,2021 1,736.67 15,618.92 39.41 14.23 17,409.23

Chargefor the Year 1,399.71 14,501.58 14.21 11.33 15,926.83

Disposal 204.66 204.66

As at March 31,2022 3,136.38 29,915.84 53.62 25.56 33,131.40

Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31,2021 37,785.23 2,35,943.75 89.43 16.02 2,73,834.43

As at March 31,2022 36,481.99 2,24,563.89 86.73 40.82 2,61,173.43

Note: Property, Plant and Equipment has been hypothecated to lenders for Term Borrowings (Refer Note No.17)
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3. Goodwill

Particulars Goodwill * Total

Gross Block
As at March 31,2020 242.78 242.78

Additions - -
Disposal - -
As at March 31 2021 242.78 242.78

Additions - -
Disposal - -
As at March 31,2022 242.78 242.78

Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31,2020 - -
Charge for the year - -
Disposal - -
As at March 31,2021 - -
Charge for the year - -
Disposal - -
As at March 31,2022 - -

Net carrying amount
As at March31 2021 242.78 242.78
As at March31 2022 242.78 242.78
* Refer Note No 33 (2) (C)
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4. Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total

Gross Block
As lit March 31 2020 94.93 94.93
Additions 2.49 2.49
OlsDOsal
As at March 31 2021 97.42 97.42
Additions 7.75 7.75
0lsno5al - -
As at March 31 2022 105.17 105.17

Accumulated Depredation
As at March 31 2020 66.90 66.90
Charge for the year 10.02 10.02
01500sal -
As at March 31 2021 76.92 76.92
Charge for the year 1.16 1.16
015005al -
As at March :h 2022 78.08 78.08

Net canytng amount
As at March 31 20U 20.50 20.50
As at March 31 2022 27.09 27.09
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As at March 31,2022 Iu at March 31,2021

5. Non - Current Investments
(f'n lakh.1

A. at March 31,2022 Asat Harch3112021

Particulars No. or S~an:s f.ace Value (t) Amount No. of Shares 'ace Value (tl Amount

LONG TERM· NOH TRAI)E
rijUOTED
Designated at 'air vatue through
other Comprehenflve Income

Jindal Slalnless lImitl!:d 6,920 2.00 14.02 6,920 2.00 4.67

Total G920 14.02 6920 4.67

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments 14.02 4.67

(At market Value)

6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NOMCURRENT

Security Deposit
rnteresl Accrued
Bank Deposit! (with remalnfng maturity of more than 12months)·
Tolal Other Financial Assets - Non Curre"t

0.75 1,313.07
711.62

4.41 4.41
5.16 2,029.10

5,O·t1.42 365.13
15363.17

5,041.42 15,728.30

7. OTHER HON-CURRENTASSETS

Capital Advances
Prtpald Expenses - Non Current"

TotatOther Non-CurrentA.sets
.. Tow,rth Sft'unJydfposit".~ toJ$l.IbrWtJes.spet' SoW_

(Rele'~/tOJJ)

I. INVENTORIES

Jnvent~rle ... Sl~,es and Spares

finished Good
Stores and Spar.,

2,583.33
2,341.95

238.&4
1739.04

Totat Inventories 1,'77.88

9. CUi"""' Investments

PartIculars
As at March ll,lO:ll As at March 31,2021

No. 0' Untts Amount No. or Units AmdurU

INVESTMENTS IN MUTUALfUNDS
FULLYPAID-UP (UNQUOTEO)
Desl9natedat FillfValuethrouOhPrDfltandLon

581 Saving fund-Direct plat/-Growth 44,«,651 1,519.88

S91saving Fund-Regutar-Growth 2,24j47j917 7j563,33 1.84,37,307 6,005.23

2,24,47,977 7,5&3.33 2,28j81,958.27 7,525.11

Aggregate amount 0' unquoted investments 7,563.33 7,525.11 I
(At ma,.ket Value)
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PiIlf1Icu'.rs

AsatM~r(h31,2022 A••• Merch31~2021

10. TRADERI!Cl!lVABLES
Unucured
Considered good
Tot~1Trade Recelnbl ••

4,498.60 1.583.03
4,498.60 1,513.03

(I) Undisputed Trade recttvabtes -
cansi(!l~d good

2.9S4.l2 1.86 11.53 4,493.60

(Iv) OIspuled Trade RKelvables
considered dCHJbttul

12.38 0,03

Tota.

1.5l1f1.48

outs'andln, for following perIod. from duedateof paymentP.rtfcu'"s
Not due LessthIn 6 montbs 6 months~t 1-2ye'f' 2-3yeat' Mor.thln 3 years

yeu

(tl) Undl5puted Trade Receivables -
consfdl!reO doubtful

(II) Oisputl!d.Trade RKetvab~s
considered good

1,518.48 12.31 1.86 0.03 11.53 4,498.1i0

(I) UndlSputed Trade-ttCelvabfes -
coosldered good

451l.34 11.53 1,583.03

(\if) Disputed Trade llecelvclbl4s
CGnsldered good

yea,

l,M3.04

Outstanding for ,ollowlng period. from due dlteor p.yrnent

20.09 0.03

Totlll

(U) lIndlsput.d Trade Receivables -
constdered doubtfut

(Iv)Dfsputed Tr.adll Receivables
conskSl!red doublful

1,093.04 20.09 "SI.34 0.03 11.53 I,SI3.03

346.69 15.31
548.52

0.05 0.0'
346.74 563,a,

81'.68 SM.45

879.68 844.45

618.61 810.8'
1.82 3.23

680.43 844.01

3,566.01 1,)80.92

3,56'.07 1,110.92

2.628.02 S33.l0
343.59

10,450.85 34,947.19
13,078.17 35.82.4.41

16,069.88 32.723.17
28.72 93.03

16,0'1.60 32,1141.20

(3,019.73) 3,001.28

(3,019.73) 3,001.21

(6,028.39) 2,266.81
•.40 (8.19)

(6,.21.99) 2,258.6.

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALeNTS

8allnce. with Banks
On QJrrent o1ccounl'J
Bilnk QepGslt$ with original maturity or less than three months
cash on hand

Tot•• CII.h .nd Cuft equivalents

12. OTHER 8ANK BALANCES
Banle.depositS with oOglnal matunty of more than three month but residual mitutit)' of less than 12 months

13. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other Receivables (Unbl1ted reveAI.Ie(tom servJces)
Interest Accrude but not dUe 00 Bank deposit

Total Other Financial Assets
14. CURRENTTAX ASSETS (HET)

TDS RecQVera~e

YoU. Current Tax Assets (He')

14 A. DEFERREDTAXASSETS/(UAatLrrIES) (NET)
A. ASSETS
(l)Amount allow.ble In Income tax on payment basts
(II) flnadat asset I.tlnadal IibUiUes measured at amortlted cost
(1I1)Caniedf(ll"Ward losses
Total O~f..rre.d Tax AHat.

B.UABJUTY
(l)otfference between WDVas pel books and Income TaK
(0) F1nadal asset .. flnaclaillablrttles measuted at amortJrelS cost
Total Oerefted Tax UabJlIII••

e. Net Assets a' Tempar.ry Dlft.fence (A·I)

D. HATCredit Entitlement

KetDeferred TIl(Aue"/(U.blllty) (C+D)

Oeferred tax uset/CUabllity} accounted ror In Stitemeot or Pront -Ind loss iKCouot
Deferred tax asutJ(Uablllty)accounted rot thtough OCI
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A. ~t HArch 31,l022 A. at Milrch31,2021

15.OtherCurt..n. Auet.
Prepaid &.penstS
Advances to vendQrs
Advances fKovtrabCt Inash CIt kina-

12l-01 827.&4
0468.08 22).61
121.16 36.2&

710.• ' 1,017.51
Tot •• Ot"er Current ...ssets

• lndudes GSTAecttvitbl•.

Hi. SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorised
55,50,00.000 (45,50,00,000) Equity Sha,.s of nO/· each
26,50,00,000 (26,50,00,000) Prer.rence Smles or UO/~eath

fqully Stilt" Gut.u.ndlng as at the end ot the yea'

55,500.00 45,500.00
26,500.00 26.500.00

82 OQQ PO z;;t 000.00

46,160.83 '2.844.59
1616013 42.841 "

46.1fiO.83 42,844.59

44 up 13 .2114"

.2.8 .... 5.937 38.11,48,637
86.22.500 1,22.97.300

2.45,39,818 3.50.00,000

46,16,08,315 42,•• ,45,937

(b) Issued
461,606,315 (42,84,45,937) EquityShaftS of tlo/·tlCh

(c) Sub'Cflbed and Futly Pilld..Up
461,608,31S (42.1S4,4S,931) EquIty Shares of HOI- each

(d) Recondll."on .r Ih. number of eqully shares:

Shires outstanding .5 It the beillnnlng of the yeilr
Add: ConveJ11Onof 0.01" Hon<umulattve Compu\sority ConvettibIe Prertrenc. Shires
Add:AI~ted EquityShares dunnv the yur

(e, Re(ondU.'lon 0' the number 0' MCCCPS:

(0 O.Ol~ NonCumulative Compulsorily Convertible Pre'.renc. Sh.res (HCCepS)
Sh..-es outstandlnq as .t the beginning of the ~'( 6,36,54,063 1,59,51.36]

Add: Shares .Iotted during the year
le": Shares t:On'ltftedIn to equal number of equity shanl!$ during tne ye., 86,22,500 1,22,97,300

6,3',54,063
Neecps out.tandlng .. at the end of tIM year

(f) (I) Details of equity shlreholde,. holding more thin S'lit .h~r •• In lhe complny:

As at Much 31,2022 As .II March 31, 2021

No. 0' .... f No, of Shirai h.ld
..

Shares held Holding 0' Holding

)4,15,89,819 74.00 31,70,50,OOt 7'.00
ll.GO,18,377 26.00 11,13,95,877 26.00

.1,16,08,2511 .2,•• ,.5,171

Op)Steel Trac:UnoPrivateUmlted
lInd.1StainlessUmlted

Tot~1

(f) (II) Detallt! of 0.01 .... Hon (umul.Uv. Cum,ulsorn, Con.. rtlbl. 're'vance Shareholden hOkll"9 more th.n 5~ sh.res In the eomp."y~

AI It Hard, 31,2022 As.t March '1,2021

Ho.o' "'of
Sb,," b.rd Holdlna

llttdal Stainless Umlted 5,50,31.563 100
,'H9,d'M

tOO

Tolil 5,50,31,563 6,]6,54,0"

(f) (III) Promoto". holding.

5I\lr'. held by promot .... at U\. end of the yur IIJb of chllng. during AIAt
the yelr M"c;b 31, 2021

SIHo p,.motors Hlme No 0' sh., .. ~O!!otal Tobi' No .,sh.r ••

OPJSteelTradingPrivate 34,15,89.879 ,..oO~ O.OO'Mlo 31,70,50,001

1 UlQled

2 JInd.1stiI....ssUmlted '1,00,1.,377 26.00" 0.00"- Sl,ll.95,817

3 Pradtep Tllhiltanl " 0.00"" 0:00,," t.

4 Na"neet RJg""'I'nshi to 0.00"" O.OO~

5 5..,joyGupt. 0.00'lf. 0.00'110 to

6 "'jee" Gatg to 0.""" 0.00" 10

7 H.M\)It PrasadGupt. to 0.001<0 0.00'" 10

8 Hlh,btr ".s".d S"aml 10 0.00% 0.00'110 to
.818 pI 3\5 1211,15 t3l

(a) Details 0' Sh.r. held tly holding company

Mame 0' Shareholder.
"0. of

Share' held
... f

Hokllng No. 0' Sh., •• h,td
..

of Holding
]4,15.89.879 74.00 31,70,50,001 7..00

(h) Terms/Rights _U.ebld to Eq_ultyShllr.,
The ComINny hiS one dollSS0' equity shares having al'lce v-'ut 0' '10/· pet equity shire. eadl equRy $h.,.hOlder is entitled to one vote per wre. FurtMr the equity 5hares ISsued ltuting
the f.Y. 2018-19 wftI ro1nkpili·passu with the eld'5t1ngequity lhltes.
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16A. Other equity
If In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

A. 0.01% Non Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (NCCCPS)

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: alloted during the year
Less-Converted Into equity shares during
the year
Balance at the end of the year

6,365.40 7,595.14

(862.25) (1,229.74)

5,503.15 6,365.40

B. Retained earnings
Represents the undistributed surplus of the Company.

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Profit for the year
Balance at the end of the year

(6,481.92)
14,848.83

(2,346.60)
(4,135.32)

8,366.91 (6,481.92)

C. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plans
Represenls amounts towards remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Balance at the beginning of the year
Re-measurement of the net defined
benefit plans (net of taxes)
Balance at the end of the year

(5.29)

(8.17)

(18.59)

13.30
(13.46) (5.29)

D.Gain I (Loss) on Fair valuation of Investment (net of taxes)

Balance at the beginning of the year
Gain I (Loss) on Fair valuation of
Investment (net of taxes)
Balance at the end of the year

1.20 (0.76)

7.00 1.96
8.20 1.20

E.Share premium

Balance at the beginning of the year
Premium on share allotment 1.546.01

1546.01
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P~r1lculil""

17. BORROWIHG5"NOHCURRerrr

Secured
TermLoan.
Term lOilns from Banks 2,02,"'5.82 2,40,861.35

Unsecured

10% non·Cumulative hon<onvertJble Redeem,bre Prefe~nc. Shares·
Inter corporate toln (rom relited party
-(refer note no. 31(2»)
Total Han-(uruftt borrowings

.,761.)]
6,700.00

8,767.33
6,700.00

2,17.9.3.15

Term La." from l.anks
(a)The Term LOilnFacility 1 hom banks,mounting to Rs. 1.86,157.73 lakhs (RI. 2,41,437.23 lAkhs) .,e ,epay.bleInst:ructwtd q~ilrtel1yInst.umlnc.s, with repaymlnt for Rs. 194.661akhs
during FY2022·21. Ils. 618.S4lMhs durIn9 fY 2023-24. RI. 714.00 ukl'ls during FY2024-25, R.I. 1,005.1" Laktls during fY 2025-26. lIS. 1.494.44 La~s during FY2026-27, As. 4,857.59
laths durtng fY 10n·21, Rs. 19,06l.60 l.lchJ eluting FY2028-19, Rs. 19,019.28 lAWlsduring FY2029·30, Rs. 20,446.51 ukhs during FY2030']1. Rt, 15,189.31 LlikhsdUring FY2031-32,
fts. 5.098.40 Latchl during FY2032-)36 FY2033-34. Rs. 6,386.21 Lnhs during FY2034-]5 .. As. 7.647.60 ukhs dunno fY 203S-36.. Rs. ',935.43 Lakhs during fY 2036.37, As. 10,858.51
taldts dtJrtng FY2031-38, Rs_t1,S"'.66 Lalths 0uMg FY2038-39, Rs. 1l,190.54 ukhs cklrfngfY 20]9·40, Rs. ''',nO.9] Lelthsduring fY 2040-41 and b.1,nee repaya~e Rs. 22,296.88l.akhs
In FY2041-42

b)The Term lOan fadltty 2 f'rom bltlu .ntOUrIUAI) to As. 12.125,00 Laths is repayable In structurH quart.", Insu'ments. wAh ~ym~nt for Rs. 1.500.00 lath, dUrinOfY 2022-23, As.
2.000.00 Llths during fY 2023-24. As. 2,500.00 L.khs during FV2024-25 .. FV2015-26, As. 2,875.00 La'dlSduq fY 2026-27 .nd bal,nee rf:p.1yableIta. 7S0.00 LAkhsIn fY 2027-28.

(c) Th. Tttm Loan 'adltty 3 from tNnks amounUnq to As. 5,600.00 Lakhs Is repayab,. In structuted quarterfy Irut'lltnInts, with rfllNyment ,." Rs. S6.00 I.khs dUf1ng fY 2022.23& fY 1023-
24, Rs. 44S.00 LAkhsdurtng FY2024-25, As. 672.00 lalrMduItno fY 20ZS-26. As. 840.00 ukhs during fY 2026·27 .. FY2027·28. As. 1.008.00 Lakhs duriflg fY 2021·29 6. FY2029·)0 and
balance tepavibfe RI. 672.00 ukhs InfY 2030·31.

(d)T1!eoutstandlng longterm borrowlJ1gslndude p adjustment or unamoftls.cl portion of upfi'ont tee~ and transaction costs .mauntJng to Its. 356.25 Jalchs

facUy 1 ts secured by ftnt pMl·p.ssu marge by wq 01mortgage of ComPM'YSImmovable ptopettles Ind t'lypcthKHkH'Iof moveable ftxed aJSHS bath p... sent • tutu,. and se<:ond part
passu charge by way of hypothtc.auon and/or pit.of current .ssets lndudll19 ftnlshH 000dS. nw matenals. worlr.·~-pr09ress, comum.b)l! stores and $JnrtSI book debts. biUsrecel ...ab~e,
etc both present and future.

fadUty 1is also secured by the foI!owing ~ .. seCVl1tifs:

(I) Unconclitlonaland Irrevocable IMrsonal9u.,.ntee or Mr. Retn JIndal; and
(II) Pari-passu pledge of 100'M.equity shares, IS held by promowr (OPJSTPl.)In the Company.

fadlity 2 Is secured by ftrst parf-pusu marge by way or mor't9lge 0' Complny"s knmoyab .. ploperUes .nd hypothecation 0(moveable Axed.uets both .".sent 6. future and second p.'"
passu chafge by .ay or hypothecMlon and/or pledge 0'current .uets lncIudtngbut not Imlted to flniJhed 000Ch, raw materials, woric-fn..progress.consumable stores ~ spatH, book dfbts.
bUlsreceivable, etc bath present and future.

f.dIlty 3 Iisecured by ftm part·~ssu charve byway or mortgage 01Company's Immovable propetttes and hypothtc.atton0#moveable tlxed assets both pre"nt .fUtur. and sKOOdpm.
passu Charge by way orhypotheuUon ,ndl_ pledge of curnnt flsets ItIdudInt tJut not ImIted to tInIshed goods. Ii" matertlls, work-fn·9fOOress. consumable stens Ind spares, book debts,
bIllSreceiv.blel etc both pt'esent and ruture.
10~ Hon-Cumulatlw. rta.,..ConvertiDleRed.. m.bl .. p,..r.rence Shares
8.76.73.311. 1011\Non - Cumu~tty.Non • Camertibte Redeemable Preference Shares (-I'C"CRPS') .r. redetm.Iblf an or before 20 (tweftty) 'furs 6-om the date 0' a!Jotm.ntI••. ill"
October. 2016. ar: the option af ttMcompany.

18. PROVISlONS

Provilion for !mploye .. beneDIs
Provtsion for'Grolluity
Proviston (or leeve Encashrntnt

Total Ptovl.lona

.(80.'" 232.15
145.40 Ill.31

421.34 lSI.OI

169.19
1,750.66 575.81

1,750.'8 745.07

I'. BORROWINGS· CURRENT
Secur.d·
Overdraft. from banks

C",,*nt n'latulities 0' long t.rm bol'towtngs

Tot.l 'onDwln, •

• Overdr.ft: andWortJ", apltal tadfly fromHnt fs se(unld against Henmark or filted dtpOSit held by company.

20. TRADe PAYAIUS

Oua, 10MicrolAd Small fn1elpfises (refer noteA-bebw)
Dueto a-.dltors oth..-tNn micro .ndslNll ent4trprtsH

614.17
5.984.84

324.68
7,544.51

6,599.01 7,8'9.1'

Partlcul.,. OUlslandlng for following p.rlod5 "am due dlle of payme"t

lesl than 1 y.ar 1·2ye.r. 2--3 y....,. Motetha,. J ye.r. TO'.1
(I) HSHE 590.86 10.23 13.06 0.02 614.11
(A) Others 5,8".10 38.45 14.03 5).26 5,98<.84
(;UlDis",,"'" _.·KSHE -
Iv) OIsp.!tted dues·Others

• 0 9.01',4 '.96 4'.6' 27•• 53.21 8,59

Partlcul ....

302.94
1..2 yeara 2-] ye.r. Moreth.n 3 yea"

13.23 8.13 0.38
Total

(lIlOthen 7.493.61 9.51 041.39
324.68

Outst."dlng for following ,erlods ',om due date of payment
leu th.n 1 year

(I) HSHE
7,544.51

(III) OIsputted ClueS·MSME
(Iv) Dlsputteddues·Others

1,71'.5$ 22.74 '.13 41.77 7,'''.19
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Putlculars
As ill March31,2022 As at Much 31,2021

A On the bub of confirmatIOn obtalned ffom supptierS 'Who have registered tmmseh'M under the Hkro, Sm,1l1 ,nd Hedtum Enterprise oevflopment Act, 1006 (HSHEO Act. 2006) lAd based on
the In(Qrmatlonavailable wM the Company, dues dlsdo-sed as pet the Micro, SmaHand Medium Enterprise [)eve!opment Act, 1006 at the yeat end are below:

Partkutu.
As at Har<h :U,2022 A.s.t Ha"-h 31,2021

(i) The prftlCiPfll amounl,fnd the ItIttrest due thereon remain'.ftg unpald to aoy $upplf.r as at the eM of each accOUnting year

Prindpal amount due
Interest amount due

(u) 1hfI amount of Interest paid by the buyer to termt of section 16. alO"9 Wflh t~ amounts of the- payment made to the suppM", b'lVOnd the
appointed day during uch accounting year

em:The amount 0' Inter." due and payable for the periOdof delay Inmaldngpayment (which hive beenpaidbot beytlnd the appointed day
durtngthe yeat) but without adding the Int.rest spedned undtf the Act

(I( The amount of Interest accrued Ind remaining unp~d ilt the end of each accounting year

(v) The amoont of furthet interest remami'Rg due and payable tv.n In the succeeding ytMS, until stICh date when the Interest <lues as above
are ac;tually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose~' disallowance. as a deductible tllPendRuce under s~on 23.

612.62
1.55

32..... 1
0.21

1.55 0.21

21. OTHER FINANCIALUABIlIT1ES

Interest Accrued
28.27 59.34

Others:
Capital Creditors

621.69 1.313.97

Other OutsUndlng Uilbl~eS
2,034.14 1,4-12.97

Tol11 Other Flnilnda} UabUitlu
2,684.10 1,816.18

22. OTHERCURRENTUABllntES

Other p.yablcs
Statutory Dues

520.94 676.48

Total Other Cutnnt UabUlUes
520.94 67'.48

23. PROVISIONS

Provision ror Employu ben en..
ProvisiOn for Gratuity

10.76 5.oa
ProVIsion for leave Encuhmfnt

•. 44 6.13

Tatal Proyl.ton,
19.20 11.13

(1bls space has been Inttntlonally Jeft: blank)

-':":~.;~~\
-,:t::;~~5f)



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars Year Ended March
31,2022

Year Ended March
31,2021

24. Revenue from Operations

JobChargesreceived
Saleof Product

1,17,440.18
30,893.89

79.313.11
11.094.67

Total Revenue from Operations 1,48,334.07 90,407.78

25. Other Income

Profit on Sale of FixedAssets
Interest on FixedDeposit
Liability written Back
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund
Galn/(Loss) on fair valuation of mutual fund
Interest Income on fair valuation of Security deposit
Interest on Income tax refund
Other Operating Income
Other Non-Operating Income
Total Other Income

32.89
44.16
0.72

160.93
104.18
77.82

65.66
171.86

1.15
15.65
9.92

216.04
231.57
11.48164.98

902.28
1,487.96 723.33

26. Raw Material Consumed
RawMaterial Consumed 26,213.89 7,929.32

26,213.89 7,929.32
27.CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF
FINISHED GOODS ,WORK IN PROGRESS
AND TRADING GOODS

OPENING STOCK
FinishedGoods
TOTAL OPENING STOCK

238.84 1,444.98
238.84 1,444.98

CLOSING STOCK
FinishedGoods 2,583.33 238.84

2,583.33 238.84

TOTAL - CHANGESIN INVENTORIES {(Increase) / Decrease} (2,344.49) 1,206.14

28. Employee Benefits Expenditure

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and other benefits
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total

2,831.85
134.00
33.33

2,391.23
122.82
32.36

2,999.18 2,546.41



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars Year Ended March
31,2021

Year Ended March
31,2022

29. Finance Cost

Interest Expenses
Other Borrowing Costs

Total Finance Costs

30. Depreciation II< Amortisation

Depreciation on Fixed Assets
Amortization of Intangible assets

Total Depreciation II< Amortisation

31. OTHEREXPENSES

(a). Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spare parts
Power and Fuel
Labour Processing & Transportation Charges
Repairs to buildings
Repairs to plant & machinery
Job work expenses
Other Manufacturing Expenses

(b). Administrative Expenses
Insurance
Rent
Rates and Taxes
legal and Professional
Postage, Telegram ,Telex and Telephone
Printing & Stationary
Travelling & Conveyance
Director' Meeting Fees
Vehicle Upkeep and Maintenance
Auditor's Remuneration
Miscellaneous Expenses

(C). Selling Expenses
Other Selling Expenses
Freight Charges

Loss on sale of asset

Total Other Expenses

32. Exceptional Items

Exchange Fluctuation

Total Exceptional Items

23,166.57
482.80

30.176.02
296.70

23,649.37 30,472.72

15,926.83
1.16

15.257.30
10.02

15,927.99 15,267.32

7,453.89
37,015.55
8,202.81

44.30
689.14
226.57
276.46

4.925.23
23.532.36
5.398.37

18.82
335.67

237.86
53.908.72 34.448.31

393.63
263.06
42.51
86.19
16.91
16.27
1.23
0.53
85.50
5.05

6,256.64

335.84
787.03
23.82
50.22
14.86
19.38
1.56
0.23
78.28
5.05

4.199.54
7.167.52 5.515.81

381.78
973.20

179.71

(32.81)
1.354.98 146.90

52.60
52.60

62,483.82 40,111.02

(15.05) (0.36)

( 15.05) (0.36)



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

33. Composite Scheme of Arrangement

1. Composite Scheme of Arrangement (here in after referred to as 'Scheme') amongst Jindal Stainless Limited
Transferor Company / JSL)and its three wholly owned subsidiaries namely Jindal Stainless (Hisar) limited
(JSHL),Jindal United Steel Limited (JUSL)and Jindal Coke Limited (JCL) under the provision of Sec 391-394
read with Sec 100-103 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other relevant provision of Companies Act, 1956
and / or Companies Act, 2013 has been sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Harvana,
Chandigarh vide its Order dated 21st September 2015, modified by order dated 12th October, 2015.

Section III of the Scheme comprising Transfer of the Business Undertaking 2 (as defined in the Scheme) of
the Transferor Company comprising, inter-alia, of the HSM Plant of the Company Located at Odisha and
vesting of the same with Jindal United Steel Limited (JUSL)on Going Concern basis by way of Slump Sale
w.e.f. appointed date, i.e. close of business hours before midnight of March 31, 2015. Section III of the
Scheme has become effective on 24th September 2016 [l.e, on receipt of approvals from the Orissa
Industrial Infrastructure Development Corporation (OIiDCO) for the transfer/grant of the right to use in the
land on which HSM Plants are located, to JUSLas specified in the Scheme].

2. Pursuant to the Section III of the Scheme becoming effective:

a) Business undertaking 2 have been transferred by way of slump sale to and vested in the company with
effect from the said appointed date, i.e. close of business hours before midnight of March 31, 2015.

b) Business undertaking 2 has been transferred at a lump sum consideration of ,{241,267.33 Lakhs; (out
of this ,{215,OOO.00Lakhs shall payable by the transferee company in cash, out of which ~208,321.00
Lakhs paid by the company during the Financial Year 2016-17 & '{ 6,679.00 Lakhspaid by the company
during the Financial Year 2017-18) and against the balance amount of ,{26,267.33 Lakhs, the company
had to issue & allot to the transferor Company 8,76,73,311 nos. 10% non-cumulative non-convertible
redeemable preference shares having face value of'{ 10 each which has been issued during the year
2016-17 and 17,50,00,000 nos. 0.01% non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares
having face value of ~ 10 each out of which 4,38,68,919 Issued and converted to equal no. of equity
share of ~ 10/- each at par during Financial Year 2016-17 and remaining 13,11,31,081 issued during the
financial year 2018-19, out of which 1,42,47,286 converted to equal no. of equity share of ~ 10/- each
at par during financial year 2018-19 and 4,09,32,432 converted to equal no. of equity share of ~ 10/
each at par during financial year 2019-20 and 1,22,97,300 converted to equal no. of equity share of '{
10/- each at par during financial year 2020-21 as specified in the Scheme.

c) On transfer of Business Undertaking 2, the difference between the fair values of assets and liabilities
transferred to and vested in the Company and the lump sum consideration paid/to be paid as stated
above, amounting to ~242.78 Lakhs has been considered to Goodwill.

3. In terms of the Scheme as stated above, all the business and activities of Business Undertaking 2 has been
carried on by JSLon or after the appointed date in trust in so far as may be necessary until all rights
license/permits stands fully developed.

4. lOCO (vide letter dt. No. IDCO:HO:P&A:lA-E:3642(V)/03-16/20731 Dt 24.09.2016) has given permission
for sub-lease of 382.02 Acres of land at Duburi, Dist- Jajpur, Odisha by JSLto JUSL Accordingly JSLhas
entered into long term Sub-lease of land to JUSL.



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

35. Exceptional item Includes Gain/ (Loss) (net) of (~ 15.05 Lakhs), (previous year: net loss ~ 0.36 Lakhs) on
translation/settlement of foreign currency monetary items.

36. Based on the intimation received from supplier regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the required disclosure is given below * :

SI.No. Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

1 Principal amount due outstanding 612.62 324.41

2 Interest due on (1) above and unpaid 1.55 0.27

3 Interest paid to the supplier - -

4 Payments made to the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day during the year.

5 Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
6 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 1.55 0.27

7 Amount of further interest remaining due and - -

payable in succeeding year

(~in lakhs)

* To the extent information available with the company.

37. In the opinion of board, assets have a realizable value, in the ordinary course of business at least equal to
the amount at which they are stated.

38. Segment Reporting
Company has only one eligible business segment i.e. Steel Products.

39. Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of INDAS24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party,
related party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control
exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods, are:

A. Key Management Personnel (KMP):

51.
Name Designation

No.
1 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta CFO(ceased w.e.f 07.10.2020)

2 Mr. Akhand Kirty Company Secretary

3 Mr. Rahul Himatsingka Wholetime Director

4 Mr. Narinder Dhankar CFO(appointed w.e.f 01.11.2020)
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B. Related Parties:

Principal
place of % 5hareholding/Voting

operation Principal Power
51. Name of the entity in the Group / Country Activities/Nature
No. of of Business As at

As at March
Incorpora March

31,2021
tion 31,2022

(i) Holding Company:
OPJSteel Trading Private
Umited.{w.e.f. 27th December, India Trading of steel 74.00% 74.00%
2016

(i)
Entity Having Significant influence
over the company

Jindal Stainless Limited India
Stainless Steel

26.00% 26.00%
manufacturing
Stainless Steel

Jindal Stainless{Hissar) Limited India manufacturing

C. Related Party Transactions (~in lakhs)

51.
Particulars

Shareholding Company
No.

2021-22 2020-21

1 Purchase of Goods 74,792.60 39,632.29
Jindal Stainless Ltd 74,792.60 39,614.90
Jindal Stainless(Hissar) Limited - 17.39

Job charges paid 47.48 -
2 Jindal Stainless Ltd 47.48 -

3 Sale of Goods
35,569.11 13,988.03

Jindal Stainless Ltd 4,123.39 1,826.24
Jindal Stainless(Hissar) Limited 31,445.72 12,161.79

4 Job work Charges-Received 1,16,154.18 84,631.86

Jindal Stainless Limited
1,16,154.18 84,631.86

5
Sharing of Exp. Reimbursed/to be

63.20 20.89
Reimbursed
Jindal Stainless Ltd 63.20 20.89



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

6 Support Service Charges Paid
Jindal Stainless ltd

7,405.68
7,405.68

4,979.22
4,979.22

7
Security deposit repaid
Jindal Stainless ltd

20,464.00
20,464.00

737.00
737.00

737.00
737.00

8 Interest paid
Jindal stainless limited

D. Related Party Balances: (~in lakhs)

SI. Shareholding Company
Particulars As at 31st As at 3pt

No. March, 2022 March, 2021

1
Equity Share Capital! Preference Share
Capital;

(il Equity Share Capital 46,160.83 42,844.59
Jindal Stainless limited 12,001.84 11,139.59
OPJ Steel Trading Private limited 34,158.99 31,705.00

(ii) 10% NCNCRPS 8,767.33 8,767.33
Jindal Stainless Limited 8,767.33 8,767.33

(iii) 0.01% NCCCpreference share 5,503.16 6,365.41

Jindal Stainless limited 5,503.16 6,365.41

2 Balance as at the end of the Year

Security Deposit receivable (Including 20,464.00
Prepaid amount)

-
Jindal Stainless Limited* - 20,464.00

Receivable 2,049.40 456.48
Jindal Stainless(Hissar) Limited 1,270.83 456.48
Jindal Stainless limited 778.57

3 Borrowings(inter corporate deposits) 6,700.00 6,700.00

Jindal Stainless limited 6,700.00 6,700.00

4 Payables - 4,068.71
Jindal Stainless ltd(current Account Balance) - 4,068.77

Jindal Stainless(Hissar) limited - -

* Due to Implementation of Composite Scheme of arrangement. (Refer Note no.33)
Note: Above transaction does not include interest free security deposit of i{ 4,536 Lakhs payable to Jindal
Stainless Ltd as per infrastructure sharing agreement executed on 05th May, 2015, which is yet to be paid.
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E. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Particulars
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Short-Term benefits 127.36 143.90
Defined contribution plan
$# 4.74 4.84
Total 132.10 148.74

(~in Lakhs)

# as the liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a
whole, amounts accrued pertaining to key managerial personnel are not included above.

$ including PF, leave encashment paid and any other benefit.

40. Earnings Per Share (EPS)computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 "Earning Per
Share ".

SI. Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
No.
a. Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Profit and Lossfor basic EPS 14,848.33 -4135.32
b. Add: Interest Expenseson potential equity shares (net of tax) - -
c. Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Profit and Lossfor diluted EPS - -
d. Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for Basic EPS* 49,74,78,603 47,40,72,603
e. Weighted average No. of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS 49,74,78,603 47,40,72,603

Basic EPSPer Share ( in ~ ) 2.98 (0.87)
Diluted EPSPer Share ( in ~ ) 2.98 (0.87)
FaceValue Per Share ( in ~ ) 10.00 10.00

(~in Lakhs)

"lncludiru; 55,031,563, 0.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (NCCCPS)of
,{10/- each (Previous Year-63,654,063 NCCCPS)

41. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities Is to manage finances for the Company's operations. The Company has short term
current investments only. The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and
other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Interest
rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate- because,of
changes in market interest rates. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities he1~~1s:ofM~(ch

')l '. '.
31,2022 and March 31, 2021. . -..-..... I.~~I " ~:.\

"<8~.:G~Rry~~.\ ~ \&.0\ f~':i: k:"+ '- ~ \..",,'-....r.:..,'/'
• (J ('l. • . • '1'1 .-. - ., ' ,: . ~ ~. __.-''<,/' C\'~~/
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

ii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss.

iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Market Risk
The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post
employment benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the
relevant Statement of Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks.
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates. However, such effect is not material.

(a) Foreign exchange risk and sensitivity
The Company transacts business primarily in Indian Rupee, USD,Euro, CNY.The Company has foreign currency
trade payables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk, though not material.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD, Euro and CNYto the Indian Rupee with all other
variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax and other comprehensive income due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities is given below:

Foreign Exchange Risk And Sensitivity (Unhedged)
(~in Lakhs)

Effect on profit before Effect on profit before

Particulars
Change in currency tax/preoperative expenses tax/preoperative expenses

exchange rate For the year ended March For the year ended March
31,2022 31,2021

USD +5% 84.65 (42.36)
-5% (84.65) 42.36

Euro +5% 116.00 3.20
-5% (116.0) (3.20)

The assumed movement in exchange rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
environment.
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Summary of exchange difference accounted in Statement of Profit and Loss/preoperative expenses:
(~in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars on on

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Net foreign exchange (gain) / losses shown as exceptional
item 15.05 0.36

Total 15.05 0.36

(b) Interest rate risk and sensitivity
The Comapny's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt
obligations with floating interest rates, any changes in the interest rates environment may impact future cost
of borrowing.

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of borrowing cost on floating
rate portion of loans and borrowings.

(~in lakhs)
Effect on profit before Effect on profit before

tax/preoperative tax/preoperative
expenses expenses

Increase /Decrease in For the Year ended 31 For the Year ended 31
Particulars Basis Points March 2022 March 2021

INR Borrowings +50 (l,021.13) (1,207.19)
-50 1,021.13 1,207.19

The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment.

Interest rate & currency of borrowings
The below table demonstrates the borrowing of fixed and floating rate of interest:

(~in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year For the Year

Ended 2021-22 Ended 2020-21
Borrowing currency ~ ~
Total Borrowings 2,19,693.81 2,57,073.75
Floating Rate Borrowings 2,10,926.48 2,48,306.42
Fixed Rate Borrowings 8,767.33 8,767.33
Weighted Average Interest Rate (%) 9.94% 10.83%

(e) Commodity price risk and sensitivity
The Company is at present doing the major work on job work, so the commodity price risk is not materially
affected. Hence Commodity Price risk and sensitivity is not applicable.
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Trade Receivable

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as
credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. The Company monitors
the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are
located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Ason 31.03.2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Not due less 6 1-2 2-3 More
than 6 months - years years than 3
months 1 year years

(i) Undisputed Trade 1,518.48 2,954.32 12.38 1.86 0.03 11.53 4,498.60
receivables - considered good
{ii)Undisputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables - considered
doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
considered doubtful
Total 1,518.48 2,954.32 12.38 1.86 0.03 11.53 4,498.60

Ason 31.03.2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Not due less than 6months 1-2 2-3 More
6 months -1 year years years than 3

years
(i) Undisputed Trade 1,093.04 20.09 458.34 0.03 11.53 - 1,583.03
receivables - considered
good
{ii)Undisputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables - considered
doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables considered - - - - -
doubtful

Total 1,093.04 20.09 458.34 0.03 11.53 - 1,583.03

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service
standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generallv,-tl=l6 balances are
maintained with the institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings. J~~~itirif'P~:~V,does not
maintain significant cash and deposit balances other tha!l- • ~~uired for its day to p.~(operatid~~_,\
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Liquidity risk

The Company's objective is to; at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral
requirements. The Company relies on a mix of borrowings, capital infusion and excess operating cash flows to
meet its needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term
expansion needs. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on
any of its borrowing facilities.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date.

For the Year ended 31 March 2022
(~in lakhs)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022

Carrying less than
1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than

TotalAmount 1 Year 3 years

Interest bearing borrowings
(including current
maturities) 2,19,693.81 1,750.66 - - 2,17,943.15 2,19,693.81
Trade payables 6,599.01 6,469.97 48.68 27.09 53.28 6,599.01
Other liabilities 2,684.10 2,591.48 37.68 23.84 31.10 2,648.10

Total 2,28,976.92 10,812.11 86.35 50.93 2,18,027.53 2,28,976.92

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
(~in lakhs)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021

Carrying less than
1-2 Year 2-3 Year

More than
TotalAmount 1 Year 3 years

Interest bearing borrowings
(including current
maturities) 2,57,073.75 745.07 - - 2,56,328.68 2,57,073.75
Trade and other payables 7,869.19 7,796.55 22.74 8.13 41.77 7,869.19
Other liabilities 2,816.28 1,805.04 110.11 882.09 19.04 2,816.28

Total 2,67,759.22 10,346.66 132.85 890.22 2,56,389.49 2,67,759.22

@
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TheCompanyis requiredto maintain ratios (includingtotal debt to EBITDA/ networth, EBITDAto grossinterest,
debt servicecoverageratio andsecuredcoverageratio) asmentioned in the loanagreementsat specifiedlevels.
In the event of failure to meet anyof these ratios these loansbecomecallableat the option of lenders,except
where exemption is providedby lender.

Competition and price risk
The Company faces competition from local and foreign competitors. Nevertheless,it believes that it has
competitive advantagein terms of highquality productsand bycontinuouslyupgradingits expertiseand range
of products to meet the needsof its customers.

Capital risk management
The Companyaim to manageits capital efficiently so asto safeguardits ability to continue asa going concern
and to optimise returns to our shareholders.

The capital structure of the Companyis basedon management'sjudgement of the appropriate balanceof key
elements in order to meet its strategicand day-to-dayneeds.We considerthe amount of capital in proportion
to risk and managethe capital structure in light of changesin economicconditionsand the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets.In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Companymay adjust the
amount of dividendspaidto shareholders,return capital to shareholdersor issuenewshares.

The Company'spolicy is to maintain a stable andstrong capital structure with a focuson total equity so asto
maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business.The Companywill take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessaryadjust, its capital
structure.

The Companymonitors capital usinggearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital which is givenas
under:-

GearingRatio

Particulars Asat March Asat March
31,2022 31,2021

Loansand borrowings 2,19,693.81 2,57,073.75
Less:Cashandcashequivalents 364.74 563.89
Net debt 2,19,347.07 2,56,509.86
Total capital 61,571.65 42,723.99

Capital and net debt 2,80,918.72 2,99,233.85
Gearingratio 78% 85%

(~in lakhs)

In order to achievethis overall objective, the Company'scapital management,amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenantsattached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loansand borrowings.There havebeenno breachesof the financialcovenantsof any interest
bearing loansandborrowing for reported periods. .._...•
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

42. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial
instruments that are recognised in the financial statements

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

amount amount
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
and loss*
Investment (In mutual
funds - current) 7,563.33 7,563.33 7,525.12 7,525.12
Financial assets designated
at fair value through OCI*

Investment (In shares - non
current) 14.02 14.02 4.67 4.67
Financial assets designated
at amortized cost

Fixed Deposits 884.09 884.09 848.86 848.86
Cash and cash equivalents 346.74 346.74 563.89 563.89
Trade Receivable 4,498.60 4,498.60 1,583.03 1,583.03
Other Financial Assets 681.18 681.18 2,868.76 2,868.76

13,987.96 13,987.96 13,394.33 13,394.33
Financial liabilities
designated at amortized
cost
Borrowings- fixed rate 8J67.33 8,767.33 8,767.33 8,767.33
Borrowings- floating rate 2,10,926.48 2,10,926.48 2,48,306.42 2,48,306.42
Trade payables 6,599.01 6,599.01 7,869.19 7,869.19
Other financial liabilities 2,684.10 2,684.10 2,816.28 2,816.28

2,28,976.92 2,28,976.92 2,67,759.22 2,67,759.22

(~in lakhs)

*all the expenses carried to expenditure during construction period forming part of Capital Work in Progress.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned
above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:
• Levell: Quoted prices/NAV for identical instruments in an active market;
• Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Levell inputs; and
• Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.
For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair val~.;.~s.p.t~~lance Sheet date. /.;{[T~~~,
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company's asset and liabilities, grouped
into Levell to Level 2 as described below:

Assets I Liabilities measured at fair value (Accounted)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investment
- In shares - Non-current 14.02 - - 4.67 - -
- In mutual funds - current 7,563.33 - - 7,525.12 - -

(!( in Lakhs)

Assets I Liabilities for which fair value is disclosed:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31,2021

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities
-Borrowings - Fixed - - - -
Rate 8,767.33 8,767.33
Other Financial - - - -Liabilities 2,684.10 2,816.28

(~in Lakhs)

During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, there were no transfers between Levell and Level
2 fair value measurements, and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. There is no
transaction/balance under level 3.

Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs for valuation under fair value hierarchy
as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively:
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a) Assets / liabilities measured at fair value(accounted)
Quantitative

Fair Valuation
information

Particulars value
technique

Inputs used about significant
hierarchy unobservable

inputs
Financial assets
Investment in Mutual Funds- Levell Market As per NAV of

-
Current Valuation Mutual Fund

techniques
Investment in Quoted Equity Levell Market Quoted price in
Shares Valuation Stock Exchange

techniques -

b) Assets / liabilities for which fair value is disclosed

Particulars Fair Value Valuation Inputs Used
Hierarchy Technique

Financial liabilities
Other Borrowings - Fixed Level 2 Discounted Cash Prevailing interest rates in
Rate Flow market, Future pay-outs
Other Financial liabilities Level 2 Discounted Cash Prevailing interest rates to

Flow discounted Future cash flows

43. Income tax expense

Particulars
For the year For the year
ended March ended March

31,2022 31,2021
Current Tax - -

-
Deferred Tax
Relating to Origination and reversal of temporary differences 6,028.39 (2,266.87)

6,028.39 (2,266.87)
Tax Expenses attributable to current year's profit 6,028.39 (2,266.87)
Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous year - -
MAT
MAT Credit entitlement - -
MAT Credit entitlement-Prior Period - -

- -
Total tax Expenses 6,028.39 (2,266.87)

-
._

.""'-..,



JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

Effective Tax Rate (ETR) reconciliation
A reconciliation of the theoritical income tax expense/ (benefit) applicable to profit/ (loss) before income tax at
the statutory tax rate in India to the income expense/ (benefit) at the Company's effective tax rate is as follows:

(~in Lakhs)
51.
No. Description 2021-22 2020-21

Net Income/(loss) before taxes 20,877.22 (6,402.19)
Enacted tax rate 25.168% 34.944%
Computed tax (Income)/Expense 5,254.38 (2,237.18)
Increase/{reduction) in taxes on account of:

1 Tax related to change of tax rate 845.56 -
2 Tax related to earlier period - -
3 Permanent Disallowance (71.55) (29.69)

Income tax Expense/(Income) reported 6,028.39 (2,266.87)

44. Deferred income tax
The analysis of deferred tax expenses/ (income) is as follows:

(~in lakhs)

Particulars
Vearended Vearended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Book base and tax base of Fixed Assets (16,653.29) 27,816.70
(Disallowance)/ Allowance (net) under Income Tax (2,094.92) (526.59)
Financial asset & financial liabilities measured at amortized

279.27 (287.32)
cost
Brought forward losses set off 24,496.93 (29,261.47)
Total 6,027.99 (2,258.68)

45. Retirement Benefit Obligation

1. Expense recognised for Defined Contribution plan
(i( in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Company's contribution to provident fund 115.98 106.71
Company's contribution to ESI 1.69 0.99
Company's contribution to superannuation fund - -
Total 117.67 107.70

Below tables sets forth the changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets and amounts
recognized in Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, being the respective measurement
dates:
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2. Movement in Defined benefit obligation
a) Gratuity

(~in lakhs)

Particulars
Gratuity (Unfunded) as Gratuity (unfunded)

on 31.03.2022 as on 31.03.2021

Present value of the obligation at the beginning of
237.76 234.38the year

Interest cost 16.17 15.98
Current service cost 32.02 29.02
Acquisition adjustment - IN 0.29 3.44
Benefits paid (5.45) (9.39)
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out - (15.24)
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) 10.92 (20.44)
Present value of the obligation at the end of the

291.71 237.76year

b) leave Encashment (Compensated Absence)
(~in lakhs)

leave Encashment leave Encashment
Particulars (unfunded) as on (unfunded) as on

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Present value of the obligation at the beginning of
139.45 137.13the year

Interest cost 9.48 9.35
Current service cost 20.22 20.34
Benefits paid (32.95) (33.70)
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out - (2.01)
Acquisition adjustment - IN 0.24 3.73
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) 17.39 4.61
Present value of the obligation at the end of the

153.83 139.45year

3. Movement in Plan Assets - Gratuity (E{ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended March
31,2022 31,2021

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Employer contributions - -
.Beneflts paid - -
Amount received on redemption of plan assets - -
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out - -
Actuarial gain / (loss) - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year - -
Present value of obligation 291.71 237.76
Net funded status of plan (291.71) ..~...- (237.76)
Actual return on plan assets ....... - ,,:~~,'L:S;-~~ -
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

The components of the gratuity &Ieave encashment cost are as follows:

4. Recognised in profit and loss/Pre-operative expenses

a) Gratuity (~in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended on For the year ended on 31st

31st March 2022 March 2021

Current Service cost 32.02 29.02

Interest cost 16.17 15.98

Expected return on plan assets - -
Re-measurement - Actuarial loss/(gain) - -
Past service cost - -
Expenses recognized in Pre operative expenses 48.19 45.00
Actual return on plan assets - -

b) Leave Encashment (Compensated Absence) (~in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended on For the year ended on 31st

31st March 2022 March 2021

Current Service cost 20.22 20.34

Interest cost 9.48 9.35
Expected return on plan assets - -
Re-measurement - Actuarialloss/(gain) 17.39 4.61
Past service cost - -
Expenses recognized in P&l A/c 47.09 34.30

5. Recognised in other comprehensive Income

(~in Lakhs)

Particulars
Gratuity for the year ended on Gratuity for the year ended on

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Re-measurement - Actuarialloss/(gain) 10.92 (20.44)

6. The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set
out below:

As of
31st March,

2022

As of
31st March, 2021Weighted average actuarial assumptions

Attrition rate NA NA
7.18% 6.80%Discount Rate

Expected Rate of increase in Compensation levels 5.50% 5.50%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets NA NA

100% IAlM (2012-14)Mortality rate 100% IAlM
(2012-14)

Expected Average remaining working lives of employees
(years) ••!t.!.I.I.U. 18.16

-"/:-_:'.,:':/'-.:.~<>\18.63
@
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The assumption of future salary increase takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in employment market. Same assumptions were considered for
comparative period i.e. 2018-19 as considered in previous I-GAAPon transition to IND AS.
7. Sensitivity analysis:

a) Gratuity (~ in lakhs)
Effect for the

Effect for the year
Change in year ended on

Particulars ended on
Assumption 31st March,

31st March, 2021
2022

Discount rate 0.5% (17.15) (15.00)
(0.5)% 18.74 16.46

Salary Growth rate 0.5% 18.69 16.59
(0.5)% (17.23) (15.25)

b) leave Encashment (Compensated Absence) (~in lakhs)
Effect for the

Effect for the year
Particulars

Change in year ended on
ended on

Assumption 31st March,
31st March, 2021

2022
Discount rate 0.5% (9.44) (9.19)

(0.5)% 10.18 10.00
Salary Growth rate 0.5% 10.36 10.11

(0.5)% (9.54) (9.27)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised
within the Balance Sheet.

8. History of experience adjustments is as follows:

Particulars Gratuity leave Encashment
For the year ended March 31, 2022

Plan liabilities - (Ioss)/gain (24.98) (25.10)
Plan Assets - (loss)/gain - -

For the year ended March 31, 2021
Plan liabilities - (Ioss)/gain 21.07 (4.19)
Plan Assets - (Ioss)/gain - -

(~in lakhs)

Estimate of expected benefit payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)
For the year ended March 31, 2022 (~ in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Compensated Absence

Year-l 10.76 8.44
Year-2 5.34 2.92
Year-3 5.28 2.77
Year-4 25.97 13.62
Year-5 8.30 3.41 @Year-6 9.53 6.58

Year-6 Onwards 226.52 116.10 .~'"
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

For the year ended March 31, 2021 (~in lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Compensated Absence

Year-1 5.00 6.13
Year-2 7.76 4.18
Year-3 4.32 2.55
Year-4 4.24 2.46
Year-5 20.41 11.14
Year-6 6.46 3.23

Year-6 Onwards 189.55 109.74

9. Statement of Employee benefit provision
(~in lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Gratuity 291.70 237.75
Compensated absences 153.84 139.45
Other employee benefits - -
Total 445.54 377.20

The following table sets out the funded status of the plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's balance
sheet.

10. Current and non-current provision for Gratuity and leave encashment

As at 31st March,2022 (~in takhs]

Particulars Gratuity leave Encashment

Current provision 10.76 8.44

Non-current provision 280.94 145.40

Total Provision 291.70 153.84

As at 31st March,2021 (~ in lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity leave Encashment

Current provision 5.00 6.13

Non-current provision 232.75 133.31

Total Provision 237.75 139.44

11. Employee benefit expenses
(~in lakhs)

Employee benefit expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salaries and Wages 2,831.85 2,391.23
Costs-defined benefit plan 134.00 122.82
Welfare expenses 33.33 32.36
Total 2,999.18 2,546.41
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

Particulars
For the year ended March 31, For the year ended March 31,

2022 2021

Average no of people employed 303 300

(Figure in NO.)

OCI presentation of defined benefit plan
-Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan, Re-measurement gains/(Iosses) on defined benefit plans is
shown under OCI as Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and also the income tax effect on the
same.
-Leave encashment cost is in the nature of short term employee benefits.

Presentation in Statement of Profit and Loss/ operative expenses and Balance Sheet

Expense for service cost, net interest on net defined benefit liability (asset) is charged to Statement of operative
expenses.

IND AS 19 do not require segregation of provision in current and non-current, however net defined liability (
Assets) is shown as current and non-current provision in balance sheet as per IND AS1.
Actuarial liability for short term benefits (leave encashment cost) is shown as current and non-current provision
in balance sheet.

When there is surplus in defined benefit plan, company is required to measure the net defined benefit asset at
the lower of; the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the assets ceiling, determined using the discount rate
specified, i.e. market yield at the end of the reporting period on government bonds, this is applicable for
domestic companies, foreign company can use corporate bonds rate.

The Company assessesthese assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry
standards. The mortality rates used are as published by one of the leading life insurance companies in India.

46."Due to outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) which has been declared as a Pandemic by the
World Health Organization and subsequent lock down ordered by the Central and State Government(s) in
India, the manufacturing operations of the Company were suspended from 25th March 2020. Subsequently,
the Company resumed operations in the phased manner while complying with the necessary
instructions/guidelines issued by relevant authorities. The Company is gradually ramping up its operations
depending upon the market conditions.
This Pandemic has disturbed the economic activities in the Country and the Company is closely monitoring
the impact on its operations and sustainability. The Company, as on the date of approval of these Financial
Statements, believes that this Pandemic may not have a significant adverse impact on the long term
operations and performance of the Company. "
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47.0ther Disclosures

a) Auditors Remuneration

Particulars For the year Forthe year ended
ended 3pt 3pt March,2021
March,2022

Statutory Auditors
a) Audit Fees 3.90 3.90
b) TaxAudit Fees 1.15 1.15

Total 5.05 5.05

CostAuditor
a)Audit Fees 0.50 0.55
Total 0.50 0.55

(~in Lakhs)

b) TheCompanyhasnot proposedanydividend to its shareholdersduring the year.

c) TheCompanyhasnot givenany loan or given anyguaranteewith respectto the partiescovered under
section 186(4) of the CompaniesAct, 2013.The Company has made investments in one Company
covered under section 186(4)of the CompaniesAct, 2013 in one associateas depicted in LongTerm
InvestmentSchedule.

48. Additional Regulatory Information

i. The company does not haveany immovable property. Hencethe disclosurerequirenment is not
applicable.

ii. The Companyhas not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipmentas defined under rule 2 of the
Companies(RegisteredValuersandValuation) Rules,2017during the year 2021-22and 2020-21.

iii. The company hasnot granted any loan to promoters, directors, KMPsand the related parties (as
defined under CompaniesAct, 2013),either severallyor jointly with anyother person.

iv. Ageingof Capital-Work-inProgress(CWIP)isasbelow:-

(a)Capital-Work-in Progress(CWIP)

Amount in CWIPfor a period of Total
CWIP Lessthan 1 2-3 More than 3

year 1-2years years years

Projects in progress 46,32,58,811 59,63,259 - 1,61,58,085 48,53,80,156

(Amount in Rs)
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vii. Companyis not declaredwilful defaulter by anybankor financial Institution or other lender.
viii. The companydoesnot haveany transactionswith companiesstruck off under section 248 of the

CompaniesAct, 2013or section560of CompaniesAct, 1956.
ix, The company do not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of

Companiesbeyondthe statutory period.
x. Theprovisionsrelated to number of layersprescribedunderclause(87)of section2 of the Act read

with Companies(Restrictionon number of Layers)Rules,2017are not applicableon the company.

xi. Financial Ratios:-

S.No Ratio 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 % change Reason for variance more than 25%

Current ratio 2.00 1.54 30%
Movement in ratio due to increase in

1 Inventory and trade receivables

Debt- Equity Ratio 3.56 6.00 -41% Movement in ratio due to loan repayment and
2 improvement in EBITDA

Debt Service
0.77 1.24 -38%

Movement in ratio due to loan repayment and
3 Coverage ratio improvement in EBITDA

Increase in ratio as the company
Return on Equity 0.28 (0.11) -371%

hasearned profit for the year as
ratio compared to net loss for previous

4 year.
Inventory Turnover 6.91 3.30 110%

Increase in ratio due to increase of cost of
5 ratio goods sold

Trade Receivable
Increase in ratio due to lower

48.78 95.96 -49% receivables and increase in
6

Turnover Ratio turnover.

Trade Payable
3.30 1.18 179%

Increase in ratio due to Increase of cost of

7 Turnover Ratio goods sold

Net Capital 2.43 2.13 14% Not applicable
8 Turnover Ratio

Net Profit ratio -319%
Increase in ratio is due to increase

9 0.10 (0.05) in profitability of the company.

Return on Capital -93%
Increase in ratio is due to increase

10 Employed (0.01) (0.12) in profitability of the company.

Return on
0.04 0.02 61%

Increase in ratio due to income from mutual
12 Investment fund investment

Formulae for computation of ratios are asfollows:
(a) Current Ratio: Current assets/ Current liabilities
(b) Debt Equity Ratio: Total Debt! Net Worth
Total Debt: Secured loans + UnsecuredLoans - Liquid Investments
Net Worth: Equity ShareCapital+ Reserves(ExcludingRevaluation Reserve)
(c) Debt ServiceCoverageRatio: EBDIT/ (Financecosts + Principal repayment of long term debt

during the period)
(d)Return on Equity Ratio = Net Income/Shareholder's equity
Net Income: Profit after tax
Shareholder's equity: Equity ShareCapital + Reserves(ExcludingRevaluation Reserve)
(e) Inventory turnover ratio: (Costof material consumed + Purchaseof stock-in-trade+. ': <,

Changesin inventories)/(average of opening and cI~Mii~i~~~~~~ory
of RM,SFG,FGand Scrap) "~;.:_'."'" (:~()\ ~ \
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(f)Trade Receivablesturnover ratio = Net Credit Sales/ (Averageof opening and closing trade receivable
for the period)

(g)Trade payablesturnover ratio: (Costof material consumed+Purchaseof stock-in-trade+
Changesin inventories )/ (Averageof opening and
closingtrade payable for the year)

(h) Net capital turnover ratio: Total Turnover / Shareholder's equity
Shareholder's equity: Equity ShareCapital + Reserves(ExcludingRevaluationReserve)
(i) Net profit ratio: Net Profit/Total income
(j) Return on Capital employed: EBIT/Capital employed
EBIT: (Profit before tax + finance cost)
Capital employed: (Total Assets- Current Liability)

xii. At its meeting held on 28January,2022, the BoardconsideredandapprovedaCompositeScheme
of Arrangement pursuant to Sections230 to 232 and other relevant provisionsof CompaniesAct,
2013, amongst the Companyand Jindal CokeLimited ('Scheme').The aforementioned Schemeis
subject to necessarystatutory and regulatory approvalsunder applicablelaws, includingapproval
of the Hon'bleNationalCompanylaw Tribunal, ChandigarhBench("NClT").

xiii. The company has not advanced/ loaned/ invested funds (borrowed/share premium/any other
sources of kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries), with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
intermediary shall (a)directly/ indirectly lendor invest in other personsor entities identified in any
manner by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries)or (b) provide any guarantee,
securityor the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The companyhasnot receivedany funds from anyother person(s)or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (FundingParty),with the understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the companyshall (a)directly/ indirectly lend or invest in other personsor entities identified in any
manner by or on behalfof the FundingParty (Ultimate beneficiaries)or (b) provide anyguarantee,
securityor the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

xiv. No incomehasbeensurrenderedor disclosedfor which transactionwasnot recorded in the books
of accountsthat hasbeensurrenderedor disclosedasincomeduringthe year in the tax assessments
under the IncomeTaxAct, 1961(suchas,searchor surveyor anyother relevant provisionsof the
IncomeTaxAct, 1961).

xv. CSRprovisionsunder section135of the CompaniesAct are not applicableto this company.
xvi. There is no transaction related to CryptoCurrencyor Virtual Currency.Hence,Not applicable.

49. Previousyear figures have been regrouped/ rearranged,wherever considerednecessaryto conform to
current year's classification.

50. Figuresin bracket indicate previousyear figures.
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51. Notes 1 to 50 are annexed to and form an integral part of financialstatements.

AUDITOR'S REPORT
In terms of our report of even date annexed hereto

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(G.K. Aggarwal)

Partner

Membership No. 086622
FRN003273N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th April, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jindal United Steel limited

t)J?l~
Om Prakash Verma

(Director)

DIN: 07137865

"
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Nir-lnder01i3rika;

(Chief Financial Officer)

(Whole Time Director)

DIN: 03633751
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